
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - August 2020



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS STAFF

Bud Sizemore
Chair

Julia Patterson 
Vice Chair

Alicia Levy

Senator
Steve Conway

Representative
Shelley Kloba

Representative
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director

Washington State Gambling Commission
P.O. Box 42400 | Olympia, WA 98504-2400
(360) 486-3469 | (800) 345-2529 | www.wsgc.wa.gov

WAGamblingCommission WAGambling

wagambling

Senator
Je� Holy

Lauren King



  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
                 “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   

August Gambling Commission Meeting Agenda 
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting  

Thursday, August 13, 2020  
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  

Commissioners may take action on business items. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

  
PUBLIC MEETING  

 Executive Session – Closed to the Public                                                Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Discuss potential agency litigation with legal counsel, including tribal negotiations. 
 

Tab 1 
1:00 

 
 

Call to Order                                                                                             Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  
*Consent Agenda                                                                                                                      

• July 17, 2020 Commission Meeting Minutes                                                    (Action)    
• New Licenses and Class III Employees Licenses                                                              

 
Tab 2 

 
*RULE PETITION FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING                     (Action) 
 

• Online Gambling                                                               Petitioner, Tavares Morales   
                                                                                              Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 
 

Tab 3 
 

* RULE PETITION FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING                    (Action) 
 

• Defining “scientific”  
                                                                                  Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 
 

Tab 4 
 

Gambling Commission Budget and Financial Update 
                                                                           Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 
 

Tab 5 
 

2021 Agency Request Legislation 
                                                                     Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

 Public Comment can be provided:  
• Before and during the Commission meeting you may email Julie.anderson@wsgc,wa,gov ; or 
• During the meeting you may use the Microsoft Office Teams Chat Box; 
• If you are attending the meeting by phone, we will offer you an opportunity to comment.   

 Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend Commission meetings. 
Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 
at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to rule changes should be directed to the Ashlie Laydon, Rules 
Coordinator (360) 486-3473.   Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting                                                          

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTk4MThiOGUtZjdhZS00OGNjLTllZjAtODBmYmU0Nzk4ZDVm%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2211d0e217-264e-400a-8ba0-57dcc127d72d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1facef7-8fd9-4a6e-b4e9-1fabd6fbe994%22%7d
mailto:Julie.anderson@wsgc,wa,gov


 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

 
* Governor Inslee issued Proclamation 20-28.4 et al that suspended certain Open Public Meeting 
requirements, including in-person public meetings requirements for this Commission Meeting. 

1 
 

July Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Gambling Commission Headquarters 

Virtual Meeting  
*July 17, 2020 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair (Present) 
Julia Patterson (Via Teams) 
Alicia Levy (Via Teams) 
Lauren King (Via Teams) 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway (Via Teams) 
Senator Jeff Holy (Via Teams) 
Representative Shelley Kloba (Via Teams) 
 

 
Staff Present: 
Dave Trujillo, Director and Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant. 
 
Staff Present-Virtual:  
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, 
Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator; 
Adam Teal, Staff Attorney; and Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the virtual meeting to order at 10:04 AM and announced that the 
commissioners would go directly into executive session to discuss potential litigation, including 
tribal negotiations, with legal counsel., He announced that the public meeting will reconvene at 
1:00 PM.  
Executive session adjourned at 12:15 PM. The commissioners took a short break until 1:00 PM. 
 
Public meeting reconvened at 1:06 PM. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked Director Trujillo to call roll to ensure a quorum. All commissioners were 
present. Chair Sizemore announced that Commissioner Troyer would not be joining the meeting 
and that the June 23, 2020 meeting was Commissioner Troyer’s last commission meeting. Chair 
Sizemore spoke about recent news events and asked for a moment of silence for the fallen 
officers since we last met.  
 
There were 84 people who attended the virtual meeting.   
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.   
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion. 
Director Trujillo called the roll.  
The motion passed 4:0  

https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/proclamations/20-28.4%20-%20COVID-19%20Open%20Govt%20Waivers%20Ext%20%28tmp%29.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery


2 
 

Tab 2 

Petition for Review 
Doug Van de Brake, Washington Assistant Attorney General; Terence Wong, Attorney for 
Petitioners; and the Petitioners, Mr. Doo and Mr. Mazeckin, presented the material for this 
tab. Mr. Terence Wong represented both Mr. Doo and Mr. Mazeckin. Assistant Attorney General 
Doug Van De Brake represented the Washington State Gambling Commission’s agency staff. 
The commissioners had before them: the administrative record from the administrative law judge 
(ALJ), the ALJ’s initial order finding the penalty of revocation was supported and appropriate in 
both cases; and the parties’ pleadings. Oral argument was held before the commissioners during 
the public meeting.  
 
Commissioners Sizemore, Patterson and King adjourned the public meeting to a closed session 
where they met with AAG Suzanne Becker for 15 minutes.  
 
Following oral argument and review of the record, the Commission denied Mr. Doo’s and Mr. 
Mazeckin’s petition for review. The Commission affirms, in its entirety, the April 13, 2019 
initial order granting Gambling Commission’s motion for summary judgment and adopts the 
initial order as the Commission’s final order. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Tab 3 
Petition for Final Action – Cost of Providing Public Records 
Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator, presented the materials for this tab. At the January 
commission meeting, commissioners approved staff’s request to enter into rule-making to 
develop rules that would allow the agency to charge for costs authorized under the Public 
Records Act. At the May public meeting, staff presented draft language for authorizing 
imposition of certain costs for providing records in a public records request, including: the actual 
cost for copying records, including per-page rate for copying, labor costs of copying, and 
shipping costs; providing copies of electronically produced records; actual costs for the 
electronic production or file transfer of the record; the use of a cloud-based storage or processing 
service; and the cost of transmitting the records in an electronic format. No comments were 
received at any public meeting or directly to the agency during the public comment period. Staff 
requested the commissioners take final action and approve the final language for this rule-
making.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve for final action on Cost of Providing Public 
Records to occur 31 days after filing with the Office of the Code Revisor. 
Commissioner King seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 3:0 
Commissioner Levy was not present for the vote. 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Tab 4 
Rules Petition-Updating Rules Regarding Card Games  
Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator, presented the materials for this tab. Staff asked the 
commissioners to approve entering into rule-making to address house-banked “jackpot” prizes, 
including progressive and house jackpots.  Current rules need to be amended and possibly new 
rules added to clarify the different jackpot prizes authorized, and how they are to be operated, 
including: restrictions, enforcement, minimum cash on hand and payments, adjustments, and 
removal of jackpot prizes offered.  
 
Commissioner Sizemore asked if the rules would address player supported jackpots. Staff replied 
that it would not and would only focus on the house-banked jackpots.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to initiate rule-making to update the rules regarding card 
games, as presented by staff.  
Commissioner King seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 3:0 
Commissioner Levy was not present for the vote. 
 
Tab 5 
Rules Petition-Sports Wagering 
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM), presented the materials for this tab. 
On March 25, 2020, Governor Jay Inslee signed House Bill 2638, authorizing sports wagering 
for Class III tribal facilities under terms of the new law and as negotiated in tribal-state 
compacts.  
New rules will likely need to be implemented before Class III tribal facilities can offer sports 
wagering at current Class III tribal facilities. Staff recommends initiating rule-making to ensure 
that the agency can facilitate the implementation of sports wagering through rule making once 
tribal negotiations are at a place that would allow the agency to begin stakeholder work 
necessary for any rule-making and not delay the submission of rule language to the 
commissioners once any language is ready for their review.  Rule-making would cover all 
aspects of regulation, but could be done in phases, if needed, and any rules will be consistent 
with terms of any new tribal-state sports wagering compact amendment(s). 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve staff recommendation to initiate rule-making to 
facilitate the implementation of sports wagering consistent with terms of any new tribal-state 
sports wagering compact amendments.  
Commissioner King seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 3:0 
Commissioner Levy was not present for the vote. 
 
Tab 6 
Presentation- Gambling Commission Financial Update 
Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), presented the materials for this tab. CFO 
Stanley provided an agency budget review and financial update. He will present the agency’s 



4 
 

budget for the Commission’s consideration and approval at the August and September 
commission meetings.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 
Tab 7 
Presentation- Agency Request Legislation 
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM), presented the materials for this tab. 
LLM Considine presented possible 2021 agency request legislation. LLM Considine discussed 
the following possible topics for agency request legislation: 
 

(1) General Fund appropriation request -  
a. $6 million sports wagering loan forgiveness 
b. Chair Sizemore added new general fund appropriation for unlicensed criminal 

activity (example: animal fighting and online gambling) 
(2) Reviewing Nonprofit bingo laws 

c. Senior Centers/Community Centers 
d. Low stakes bingo; 

(3) Sports Wagering Law clean-up 
e. Fantasy Sports/tournament pools 
f. Sports Boards 
g. Definition of esports 

(4) Forthcoming Problem Gambling Task Force Recommendations 
(5) Loot Box regulation 
(6) Social Casino regulation; and 
(7) Requesting a change to the Definition of Theft  
(8) Director Trujillo added cashless transactions - 

 
Additionally, staff held a virtual stakeholder forum on June 24, 2020 to preview possible agency 
request topics and seek input on topics stakeholders would like the Commission to take on in 
2021.  The following topics were requested by stakeholders:  
 

(1) Online Raffles 
(2) Raffles using the mail.  

 
LLM Considine briefly explained each topic on the staff and stakeholder lists.  Then, he asked 
for additional topics and Director Trujillo added cashless transactions to the list. Chair 
Sizemore added funding for criminal law enforcement work on unlicensed gambling activities. 
 
LLM Considine recommended the Commission only prioritize the budget package requests and 
nonprofit bingo changes for agency request legislation.  LLM Considine provided reasoning for 
why other topics should not be the priority this session and why the focus should be on the two 
budget requests and the nonprofit bingo law change(s). 
 
The commissioners agreed with LLM Considine’s recommendations.  LLM Considine informed 
them that he and CFO Stanley would have more specific information on each of these priorities 
at their August public meeting and will ask for final action at the agency’s September public 
meeting. 



5 
 

 
Chair Sizemore announced that the August and September commission meetings would be 
virtual and to continue to watch the agency website for up-to-date information.  
 
Chair Sizemore adjourned the July commission meeting at 3:58 PM.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST 
(New Licenses & Class III Gaming Employees) 

August 2020 
 

Index 
 
 
 
 

                                                                    PAGE 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS & COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES……………. 1 
 
MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE ……………………………………….    2 
 
NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER……………………………………….      2 
 
SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE ………………………………………  2 
 
CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE ………………………………………………….......    2-4 
 
CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEES ………………………………………………. 5-11 
 
 
                                                                               PAGES:11 
 
 
Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Licenses and 
Class III employees listed on pages 1 to 11. 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 1 of 11 
 

RAFFLE 

 

ORGANIZATION NAME 

LICENSE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  
 

 

THE ISAAC FOUNDATION 10022 N LINDEKE CT 
00-24667 02-21132 SPOKANE WA 99208-5575 

 

 
 

BACKYARD PUBLIC HOUSE 1811 W BROADWAY AVE 
00-24455 05-21616 SPOKANE WA 98201 

BARNWOOD SOCIAL 3027 E LIBERTY AVE 
00-24642 05-21670 SPOKANE WA 99207 

JACKALOPE BAR & GRILL 107 VISTA WAY 
00-24622 05-21665 KENNEWICK WA 99337 

RED ROOSTER 519 S 1ST ST 
00-24596 05-21660 SELAH WA 98942 

THE OASIS BAR 123 FRONT AVE SW 
00-24619 05-21664 CASTLE ROCK WA 98611 

 

 
 

RED ROOSTER 519 S 1ST ST 
00-24596 65-07507 SELAH WA 98942 

THE OASIS BAR 123 FRONT AVE SW 
00-24619 65-07509 CASTLE ROCK WA 98611 

NON HOUSE-BANKED CARD GAME 

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB COMMERCIAL STIMULANT 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 2 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 

LICENSE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 

PREMISES LOCATION 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

 

 

 
 

GISSANE, KURT D 
23-03113 

LEEMAN, CECILY N 
23-03112 

MIR, REBECCA A 
23-03106 

SAGER, ALYSIA M 
23-03110 

SPADORA, JOHN F 
23-03111 

ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INC 
LAS VEGAS NV 89135 

EVERI PAYMENTS INC 
LAS VEGAS NV 89113-2175 

EVERI PAYMENTS INC 
LAS VEGAS NV 89113-2175 

EVERI PAYMENTS INC 
LAS VEGAS NV 89113-2175 

EVERI PAYMENTS INC 
LAS VEGAS NV 89113-2175 

 

 
 

NEWSOM, HEATHER M 
61-04731 

FOE 03564 
DEER PARK WA 99006 

 

 
 

RUSSO, JAMES 
63-00935 

MAVERICK WASHINGTON 
KIRKLAND WA 98034 

 

 
 

BRIDGES, AMBERLY K 
68-35737 

 
B 

LILAC LANES & CASINO 
SPOKANE WA 99208-7393 

BRYANT, DEBRA L 
68-35736 

 
B 

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK 
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804 

CACATIAN, JAMIE E 
68-35749 

 
B 

WIZARDS CASINO 
BURIEN WA 98166-2524 

CREVLING, BRADLEY D 
68-35735 

 
B 

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC 
SEATAC WA 98188 

DALZELL, MICHAEL A 
68-35729 

 
B 

PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499-8434 

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE 

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER 

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 3 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 

LICENSE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 

PREMISES LOCATION 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

 

 

DORSEY SMITH, ALLYSON R 
68-35764 B 

GRAY, EDWARD A 
68-35739 B 

GREEN, JUANITA L 
68-05699 B 

GROVES, ANDREW J 
68-35728 B 

HALL LEONARD, CONNIE M 
68-33182 B 

HOGEWEIDE, ERICA L 
68-35725 B 

JENSEN, SPENCER C 
68-35745 B 

LE, LY T 
68-35732 B 

LI, MENG C 
68-16127 B 

MALONEY, CRAIG T 
68-35765 B 

MARLOW, CHUCK A 
68-14252 B 

THE PALACE 
LA CENTER WA 98629 

MACAU CASINO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD 
SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-471 

LILAC LANES & CASINO 
SPOKANE WA 99208-7393 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA 
TUKWILA WA 98168 

HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO 
LACEY WA 98516 

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO 
SHORELINE WA 98133 

MACAU CASINO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

MACAU CASINO 
TUKWILA WA 98188 

WILD GOOSE CASINO 
ELLENSBURG WA 98926 

MACAU CASINO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

MARSHALL-DITTHONGXAY, MARLENA K SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK 
68-35698 B 

MENA, VICTOR H 
68-14727 B 

MERHAWI, ABRAHAM S 
68-34714 B 

MORSETTE, ROBERT J 
68-20209 B 

MUMEY, DEVIN M 
68-35742 B 

BOTHELL WA 98012 

LAST FRONTIER 
LA CENTER WA 98629-0000 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA 
TUKWILA WA 98168 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD 
SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-471 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 4 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 

LICENSE NUMBER 

EMPLOYER'S NAME 

PREMISES LOCATION 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE 

 

 
NGUYEN, HOA T 
68-26450 

 
B 

RIVERSIDE CASINO 
TUKWILA WA 98168 

NGUYEN, THI N 
68-35746 

 
B 

RIVERSIDE CASINO 
TUKWILA WA 98168 

NGUYEN, THUY T 
68-35731 

 
B 

MACAU CASINO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

NICHOLSON, KATINA M 
68-35762 

 
B 

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON 
RENTON WA 98057 

NOESKE, ONNALIESE D 
68-35761 

 
B 

ROMAN CASINO 
SEATTLE WA 98178 

NORAGON, JAMIE L 
68-35755 

 
B 

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO 
SHORELINE WA 98133 

RANKIN, FRANCESCA N 
68-35756 

 
B 

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENAT 
EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802 

ROUSSEAU, MISTY R 
68-34785 

 
B 

FORTUNE POKER 
RENTON WA 98057 

SHEEN, NICOLE M 
68-35754 

 
B 

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

SHOEMAKER, THAIREN J 
68-35744 

 
B 

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON 
RENTON WA 98057 

TALAVERA CORREA, DENNIS O 
68-35740 

 
B 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

WARE, MARK H 
68-26269 

 
B 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT 
EVERETT WA 98204 

WAYNER, REBECCA E 
68-35738 

 
B 

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOO 
LAKEWOOD WA 98499 

WETHERALD, JEREMY M JR 
68-35741 

 
B 

WILD GOOSE CASINO 
ELLENSBURG WA 98926 

WHITWORTH, LAWRENCE H 
68-35758 

 
B 

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK 
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 5 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

CHEHALIS CONFEDERATED TRIBES 
 

BURGHER, AARON J 
69-45423 

 
 

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES 
 

BATTEN, KAYNE O 
69-45100 

BAUMAN, ELIZABETH P 
69-26170 

 
BIDLEN, KENNETH M JR 
69-44788 

EPPERSON, CHANCE B 
69-27997 

 
FARMER, KAITLIN M 
69-48691 

GIFFIN, STELLAN G 
69-48665 

 
HATCH, COLT R 
69-43899 

HUNTER, LAURA A 
69-48760 

 
LLAMAS-SIJOHN, LETISIA M 
69-48695 

MCCLUNG, JARROD B 
69-40732 

 
MOORE, THADDOUS G 
69-48674 

NORRIS, TRAVIS E 
69-48675 

 
SALLAS, NAKEASHA L 
69-39430 

SENATOR, ELI J 
69-44340 

 
TIMENTWA, JOHNNY R 
69-37504 

UDELL, CLAY J 
69-48696 

 
ZUNIE, JUDY L 
69-26005 

 
 

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE 
 

JEFFERS, TIMOTHY M 
69-48655 

LEPAGE, EUGENE E 
69-48701 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 6 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE 
 

OLSON, DIANE R 
69-48656 

OLSON, GORDON P 
69-48700 

 
OLSON, KYRAH J 
69-48624 

RICK, JAMES E 
69-48703 

 
SAVELLI, BRETT I 
69-48679 

 
 

KALISPEL TRIBE 
 

ABRAHAMSON, LAUREN D 
69-48716 

ANDERSON, KENNETH C 
69-48715 

 
CLARK, NATHANIEL D 
69-48714 

REESE, GARY E 
69-48771 

 
STEWART, SARAH J 
69-25701 

VAN LIEW, JENNIFER H 
69-48713 

 
WRIGHT, AMBER J 
69-48770 

 
 

LUMMI NATION 
 

JEFFERSON, TONI R 
69-01159 

LOWE, TERRY E 
69-48694 

 
REDSTEER, RICHARD C 
69-48693 

 
 

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE 
 

JACKSON, JACOB D 
69-48699 

 
 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 7 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

NOOKSACK INDIAN TRIBE 
 

AMMONS, TALESHA J 
69-48690 

BRONKEMA, HALEY A 
69-48704 

 
CAIN, KAYLEE A 
69-38682 

DASILVA, JOSEPH L 
69-48737 

 
LEWIS, NICOLE D 
69-48684 

MCDONALD, DONALD H 
69-16758 

 
PADILLA, AMANDA J 
69-48634 

VINUP, PATTI J 
69-02161 

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE 
 

BERGMAN, CAROLINE R 
69-28953 

 
 

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS 
 

AGUON, EUGENE P 
69-48650 

BISCONTIN, STEVEN M 
69-48743 

 
CANON, DONALD G 
69-48727 

CHIM, CHAZ W 
69-48643 

 
CHRISTENSEN, DYLAN S 
69-48729 

CLAAR, TRYSTEN M 
69-48667 

 
CLOUSE, MATTHEW I 
69-48651 

COLEMAN, LADARRYL R 
69-48649 

 
COOPER, JAMAR E 
69-48654 

CURRY, AMANDA R 
69-48744 

 
DAMON, LISA A 
69-48653 

DAWSON, CALEB C 
69-48723 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 8 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS 
 

DENNIS, DANISHA M 
69-48725 

DULANEY, TYRE D 
69-48662 

 
DURBIN, CHAYSE A 
69-48644 

EIDSON, COLIN J 
69-48646 

 
FIELDS, ROBERT L JR 
69-48672 

FRANKS, JOSHUA L 
69-48648 

 
GORDON, JACAREI C 
69-48734 

GOULDBY, CRYSTAL J 
69-48647 

 
GROGAN, PATRICK T 
69-48652 

HALL, JOHN W 
69-44848 

 
HILL, JASMINE N 
69-48736 

JONES, ALFRED T III 
69-48706 

 
JONES, KEVIN F 
69-48749 

KAUTZ, LALONDA T 
69-15708 

 
KIRK, DIANE C 
69-33280 

KOSTELECKY, DEVIN H 
69-48726 

 
LOHRE, AUSTIN J 
69-48722 

LORENZ, HELENE 
69-48733 

 
MALLETTE, ANGEL O 
69-48642 

MORBIOLI, MASSIMO D 
69-48739 

 
PALOMO, MARY JASTIN D 
69-48748 

PHAM, ANNIE Y 
69-48670 

 
QUENGA, CHRISTOPHER JOHN 
69-48645 

REITZEL, ADAM L 
69-48641 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 9 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS 
 

SAILI, FA'ALA'A U 
69-28825 

SHANTA, MARCOS S 
69-48774 

 
SIMCHEN, ELIZABETH V 
69-48730 

SLAUGHTER, JANISE K 
69-48735 

 
SNYDER, ANDREW D 
69-48721 

TEAMKITTI, TANAVOUTH 
69-48666 

 
THORNTON, TROY A 
69-48671 

TOM, CHARLOTTE A 
69-11759 

 
TOWNLEY, BRIAN A 
69-22471 

WALKER, LARENCIA T 
69-48738 

 
WARD, REBECCA A 
69-36996 

WATSON, ANTHONY JR 
69-48640 

 
WRONA, NAREEKA S 
69-48740 

 
 

QUINAULT NATION 
 

ALLEN-BRYAN, TYNELLE W 
69-48687 

EVANS, ROY E JR 
69-48689 

 
HOBUCKET, TLA-WIT-KEE 
69-48688 

 
 

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE 
 

BUSE-STONE, AMELIA M 
69-48610 

DUNN, RECHELLE 
69-48692 

SPOKANE TRIBE 
 

GREENE, DANIEL M 
69-48686 

MARZOTTO, CHRISTOPHER J 
69-48668 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 10 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

SPOKANE TRIBE 
 

PERKINS, PERRY M 
69-48685 

WATERS, CHASE D 
69-43720 

 
WHITEHEAD, KAYLA D 
69-48673 

 
 

SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE 
 

BAKER, PATRICIA M 
69-48677 

MCKIMSON, DANIELLE A 
69-34643 

 
WALKER, DAMON L 
69-48633 

 
 

STILLAGUAMISH TRIBE 
 

AGUILAR, ERNESTO J 
69-43875 

HENG, SAMAN K 
69-03223 

 
IACOLUCCI, ARRON A 
69-48705 

LECCA MENDEZ, JOSE C 
69-48709 

 
PATAO, ARLENE C 
69-15313 

ROCERO, MARY ANN L 
69-48753 

 
RYAN, CODY C 
69-48681 

SAPAKDY, BRANDON 
69-48754 

 
SCOTT, NATHAN A 
69-48710 

SEM, EDWARD J 
69-38963 

 
TALAMANTES, TAYLOR J 
69-48711 

TORRES, STEPHANIE 
69-48769 

 
WEBER, KAYLA N 
69-48755 

WILSON, SHANNON S 
69-48680 



DATE: 07/28/2020 Page 11 of 11 

PERSON'S NAME 
CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER 

  NEW APPLICATIONS  

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE 

 

 

SUQUAMISH TRIBE 
 

BROWN, VICTORIA N 
69-48763 

CAMPOS, ANGELINA M 
69-48761 

 
DEMARS, RIHO N 
69-48719 

ELMSTROM, CONNER M 
69-48663 

 
FRENDER, RONI N 
69-48720 

FULTON, KAYLEEN L 
69-48762 

 
HARSILA, CHELSEA R 
69-48682 

LEWIS, JASON S 
69-48683 

 
TAPANGCO, JEFFREY D 
69-48717 

WARNER, MARISSA S 
69-48718 

 
WOODWORTH, TAYLOR W 
69-48664 

 

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY 
 

ESPINOZA, OSCAR III 
69-48708 

RYAN, NEILL J 
69-48707 

THE TULALIP TRIBES 
 

ANDERSON, SHON M 
69-48678 

DEGRANT, DEMAURAY A 
69-40315 

 
HERRERA-TEJADA, DENNIS I 
69-48661 

MOHAMMED, WAZEEN 
69-48676 

 
WANGERIN, ROBYN R 
69-48660 



HOUSE-BANKED PUBLIC CARD ROOM REPORT

Current House- Banked Locations Operating  44

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT Mar 13, 2014 00-23112 67-00325Dec 31, 2020
SPOKANE 

VALLEY

ALL STAR CASINO Jan 14, 1999 00-18357 67-00058Jun 30, 2021SILVERDALE

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOM Jan 10, 2013 00-22440 67-00321Sep 30, 2020
SPOKANE 

VALLEY

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEE Oct 10, 2002 00-11170 67-00183Dec 31, 2020
EAST 

WENATCHEE

CARIBBEAN CARDROOM Nov 14, 2019 00-24515 67-00343Sep 30, 2020KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24512 67-00341Sep 30, 2020KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24513 67-00342Sep 30, 2020YAKIMA

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD Apr  8, 1999 00-17414 67-00020Dec 31, 2020LAKEWOOD

CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO Feb 14, 2019 00-24296 67-00339Dec 31, 2020
EAST 

WENATCHEE

CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO Sep  9, 2010 00-22132 67-00303Jun 30, 2021SHORELINE

COYOTE BOB'S CASINO Jul 10, 2009 00-21848 67-00282Mar 31, 2021KENNEWICK

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAKE TERRACE Jul 10, 2009 00-21849 67-00283Mar 31, 2021
MOUNTLAKE 

TERRACE

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO Jul 10, 2009 00-21847 67-00281Mar 31, 2021PASCO

EMERALD DOWNS May 11, 2017 00-23814 67-00335Mar 31, 2021AUBURN

FORTUNE CASINO - RENTON Jan  8, 2015 00-23339 67-00327Sep 30, 2020RENTON

FORTUNE CASINO - TUKWILA Oct  8, 2015 00-23465 67-00329Jun 30, 2021TUKWILA

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO May 13, 1999 00-17610 67-00016Dec 31, 2020SHORELINE

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT Nov 12, 1998 00-19513 67-00194Dec 31, 2020EVERETT

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOOD Aug 14, 2003 00-19258 67-00184Jun 30, 2021LAKEWOOD

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA Jan 15, 1998 00-12554 67-00012Sep 30, 2020TUKWILA

HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO Jul 12, 2001 00-17579 67-00091Jun 30, 2021LACEY

IRON HORSE CASINO Jan  9, 2003 00-19477 67-00192Dec 31, 2020AUBURN

Compiled by WSGC Revised 7/27/2020 Page 1 of 3



Current House- Banked Locations Operating  44

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA CD RM Nov 12, 1998 00-15224 67-00006Dec 31, 2020RICHLAND

LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINO Nov 13, 2008 00-21681 67-00276Sep 30, 2020CLARKSTON

LAST FRONTIER Feb 11, 1999 00-11339 67-00055Sep 30, 2020LA CENTER

LILAC LANES & CASINO Jul 12, 2007 00-21305 67-00267Jun 30, 2021SPOKANE

MACAU CASINO Nov 14, 2019 00-24514 67-00344Sep 30, 2020TUKWILA

MACAU CASINO Nov 14, 2019 00-24516 67-00345Sep 30, 2020LAKEWOOD

NOB HILL CASINO Sep 12, 2001 00-13069 67-00173Dec 31, 2020YAKIMA

PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD Jan 14, 1999 00-16542 67-00028Dec 31, 2020LAKEWOOD

PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGE Aug 13, 1998 00-02788 67-00004Jun 30, 2021MOSES LAKE

RC'S AT VALLEY LANES Nov 16, 2017 00-16220 67-00336Mar 31, 2021SUNNYSIDE

RIVERSIDE CASINO Aug 14, 2003 00-19369 67-00187Jun 30, 2021TUKWILA

ROMAN CASINO Feb 10, 2000 00-17613 67-00057Mar 31, 2021SEATTLE

ROXY'S BAR & GRILL Nov 18, 2004 00-20113 67-00231Jun 30, 2021SEATTLE

ROYAL CASINO Sep  9, 2010 00-22130 67-00301Jun 30, 2021EVERETT

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK Sep  9, 2010 00-22131 67-00302Jun 30, 2021BOTHELL

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON Sep  9, 2010 00-22134 67-00305Jun 30, 2021RENTON

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC Sep  9, 2010 00-22128 67-00299Jun 30, 2021SEATAC

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY Aug 12, 1999 00-16759 67-00038Jun 30, 2021BELLINGHAM

THE PALACE Apr  9, 1998 00-16903 67-00010Jun 30, 2021LA CENTER

WILD GOOSE CASINO Apr  8, 2004 00-20009 67-00212Dec 31, 2020ELLENSBURG

WIZARDS CASINO Feb 11, 2010 00-21998 67-00287Dec 31, 2020BURIEN

ZEPPOZ Nov 13, 2008 00-18777 67-00209Mar 31, 2021PULLMAN

Compiled by WSGC Revised 7/27/2020 Page 2 of 3



Applications Pending  2

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO 00-23001 67-00323SEATTLE

SUN PALACE CASINO 00-24587 67-00346DES MOINES

Compiled by WSGC Revised 7/27/2020 Page 3 of 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 2: AUGUST 2020 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Tavares Morales, Puyallup, Washington 

Background 

RCW 9.46.240 currently prohibits online gambling except as it relates to sports wagering in accordance 
with tribal-state compacts. The petitioner is requesting the repeal of this statute as it prohibits participation 
in gambling events, such as the World Series of Poker, which due to COVID-19, is only being offered 
online. 
Attachments: 

• Petition 

Staff Recommendation 

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a 
petition within 60 days of receiving it. Your options are: 

1) Initiate rule-making proceedings by filing the rule as proposed for further discussion; or 
2) Deny the petition in writing, a) stating the reasons for denial and specifically address the 
concerns stated in the petition, or b) where appropriate, indicate alternative means by which the 
agency will address the concerns raised in the petition.  

Staff recommends denying the petition as the Commission does not have the authority to repeal RCW 
9.46.240  

 

 
Rule Petition to Repeal 

RCW 9.46.240 
 

August 2020 – Commission Review 
July 2020 – Rule-Making Petition Received  



Petitioner's Name: Tavares Morales 
Mailing Address: 10519 137TH STREET EAST 
City: Puyallup 
State: WA 
Zip Code: 98374 
Phone: 2534571845 
Email: tavaresmorales0@gmail.com 
Rule Petition Type: Repeal Rule – I am requesting WSGC to eliminate an existing rule. 
==Repeal Rule – I am requesting WSGC to eliminate an existing rule.== 
List rule number (WAC) if known:   
Reason for repeal: Other 
Explain in more detail the reason for repeal: It's not fair only Nevada, New Jersey, & Delaware has 
online gambling! Here in Washington State we have many Casinos! How is that legal and online is not? 
Please repeal the law that says no online gambling. It's WSOP season only online because of the virus.  
 

mailto:tavaresmorales0@gmail.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 3: AUGUST 2020 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
     

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

SB 6120 was signed by Governor Jay Inslee on March 26, 2020 which amends RCW 9.46.0209(1)(i) to 
include “scientific” to the list of purposes of which a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization may be 
organized and operating and therefore qualify for licensure to operate gambling activities authorized under 
the Gambling Act. 
The Gambling Commission needs to adopt a rule defining “scientific” for charitable and nonprofit 
applicants. 

Stakeholder Outreach and Feedback 

Staff will reach out to stakeholders who are organized and operating for scientific purposes and have 
applied for licensure in the past.  

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends initiating rule-making to adopt a rule defining “scientific.” 

 

 
Staff Proposed Rule-Making 

 
WAC 230-03-133- Defining “scientific.” 

 
 

August 2020 – Initiate Rule-Making 
 



2021-23 Budget Instructions 
June 2020 

 

2021-23 BIENNIAL BUDGET DECISION PACKAGE  
 

Agency: 117 Gambling Commission 
 

DP code/title: SW / Forgive Sports Wagering Loan 
 

Budget period: 2021 Second Supplemental Budget Request 
 

Budget level: PL 
 

Agency RecSum text: *This request, while submitted by the Gambling Commission, relates to 
Section 804 in the underlying enacted operating budget.* 
 
The Washington State Gambling Commission (WSGC) requests forgiveness of the $6 million loan 
made in Engrossed Substitute House Bill 2638 of the 2020 Legislative Session. Forgiveness of the loan 
will allow WSGC greater flexibility in implementing the legislation that authorized sports wagering at 
tribal facilities. Funds not utilized specifically for implementing the bill will be able to be used for the 
investigation of illegal and unlicensed criminal gambling activity. 

 
Fiscal detail (dollars in thousands) 

 

Revenue FY 2020 FY 2021 
General Fund—State 001-1  ($6,000) 
   

Total Revenue  ($6,000) 

Biennial Totals $6,000 



2021-23 BIENNIAL BUDGET DECISION PACKAGE
Agency: 117 Gambling Commission 

DP code/title: CE / Reduce Crime and Protect Public 

Budget period: 2021-23 Biennial Budget Request 

Budget level: PL 

Agency RecSum text: 

The Washington State Gambling Commission (WSGC) requests $3 million per year of General Fund-
State funds to support its criminal investigation efforts regarding gambling-related crimes. Over the 
past 10 years, gambling crime has risen and is anticipated to rise further as California, Montana, 
Oregon and other states legalize sports wagering. In that same time period, the criminal enforcement 
unit of WSGC has remained stagnant and overwhelmed with cases. This not only impedes our ability 
to investigate new cases, but also hampers our ability to assist prosecutors that may not have a 
background in financial crimes. Ultimately, criminals are more easily able to prey on individual victims 
through loan-sharking and elder abuse and commit more crimes of opportunity at legal gambling 
sites, such as theft and money laundering for drug dealers.  

The amount of gambling crime is predominantly committed by unlicensed individuals or by individuals 
who take advantage of their position at legal establishments. Because of the prolonged, ongoing use 
of licensee funds for criminal investigations, combined with the steady increase in gambling crime, 
fees on licensees as well as cost-recovery amounts billed to sovereign tribes have risen over time. By 
adequately funding criminal enforcement efforts with general fund dollars rather than utilizing 
valuable licensee dollars and preserving them for regulation efforts, we can keep both tribal amounts 
and non-tribal licensee fees low into the future and keep Washingtonians safe from financial 
predators that target vulnerable individuals. 

Fiscal detail (dollars in thousands) 

Operating Expenditures FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 

General Fund—State 001-1 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 

Total Expenditures $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 

Biennial Totals $6,000 $6,000 

Staffing FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 
FTEs 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
August 6, 2020 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Jeff Holy 
   Alicia Levy     Representative Shelley Kloba 
   Lauren King     Representative Brandon Vick 
       
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  2021 Agency Request Legislation   
 
At our July public meeting, we decided to move forward with two priorities for agency request 
legislation:   
 

1. Budget Package 
a. $6 million sports wagering loan forgiveness 
b. Funding for agency’s criminal enforcement of unlicensed gambling activities 

2. Nonprofit Bingo 
a. Senior Housing/Community Centers 
b. Low Stakes Bingo 

 
Our deadline to submit our budget package and agency request legislation to the Governor’s 
Office is Monday, September 14, 2020.   
 
CFO Chris Stanley is putting together the budget package above.  The requests relate to two 
separate budgets (2021 Supplemental and 2021-23 biennial budgets).  Thus, there will be two 
separate requests for your review this month and submitted for your approval at our September 
public meeting. 
 
Additionally, I have included a draft change for the second priority above.  This change would 
amend our nonprofit qualification statute (RCW 9.46.0209) and our unlicensed nonprofit 
“public” activity statute (RCW 9.46.0321) in an attempt to address the low stakes senior bingo 
complaints we have been attempting to address for a couple years now and as we discussed at 
July’s public meeting. 
 
This is a first draft and staff will be reaching out to our nonprofit licensees and other nonprofit 
stakeholders next week asking for feedback. I will brief you on that feedback at our August 
meeting, if there is any feedback to discuss. 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0209
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321


______________________________________________________________ 

 

BILL REQUEST - CODE REVISER'S OFFICE 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

BILL REQ. #: Z-0919.1/20 

 

ATTY/TYPIST: JO:jlb 

 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Amending types of nonprofit organizations 

qualified to engage in certain bingo gambling activities and changes 

to the number of occurrences for unlicensed bingo activities. 

 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 1 Z-0919.1/20 

 

AN ACT Relating to amending types of nonprofit organizations 

qualified to engage in certain bingo gambling activities and changes 

to the number of occurrences for unlicensed bingo activities; and 

amending RCW 9.46.0209 and 9.46.0321. 

 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

Sec. 1.  RCW 9.46.0209 and 2020 c 150 s 1 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

(1)(a) "Bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization," as used 

in this chapter, means: 

(i) Any organization duly existing under the provisions of 

chapter 24.12, 24.20, or 24.28 RCW, any agricultural fair authorized 

under the provisions of chapter((s)) 15.76 or 36.37 RCW, or any 

nonprofit corporation duly existing under the provisions of chapter 

19.09 or 24.03 RCW for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, 

educational, civic, patriotic, political, religious, scientific, 

social, fraternal, athletic, or agricultural purposes only, or any 

nonprofit organization, whether incorporated or otherwise, when 

found by the commission to be organized and operating for one or 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 2 Z-0919.1/20 

more of the aforesaid purposes only, all of which in the opinion of 

the commission have been organized and are operated primarily for 

purposes other than the operation of gambling activities authorized 

under this chapter; or 

(ii) Any corporation which has been incorporated under Title 36 

U.S.C. and whose principal purposes are to furnish volunteer aid to 

members of the armed forces of the United States and also to carry 

on a system of national and international relief and to apply the 

same in mitigating the sufferings caused by pestilence, famine, 

fire, floods, and other national calamities and to devise and carry 

on measures for preventing the same. 

(b) An organization defined under (a) of this subsection must: 

(i) Have been organized and continuously operating for at least 

twelve calendar months immediately preceding making application for 

any license to operate a gambling activity, or the operation of any 

gambling activity authorized by this chapter for which no license is 

required; and 

(ii) Demonstrate to the commission that it has made significant 

progress toward the accomplishment of the purposes of the 

organization during the twelve consecutive month period preceding 

the date of application for a license or license renewal. The fact 

that contributions to an organization do not qualify for charitable 

contribution deduction purposes or that the organization is not 

otherwise exempt from payment of federal income taxes pursuant to 

the internal revenue code of 1954, as amended, shall constitute 

prima facie evidence that the organization is not a bona fide 

charitable or nonprofit organization for the purposes of this 

section. 

(c) Any person, association or organization which pays its 

employees, including members, compensation other than is reasonable 

therefor under the local prevailing wage scale shall be deemed 

paying compensation based in part or whole upon receipts relating to 

gambling activities authorized under this chapter and shall not be a 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 3 Z-0919.1/20 

bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization for the purposes of 

this chapter. 

(2) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0315 and 9.46.110, a bona fide 

nonprofit organization can be licensed by the commission and 

includes: 

(a) A credit union organized and operating under state or 

federal law. All revenue less prizes and expenses received from 

raffles conducted by credit unions must be devoted to purposes 

authorized under this section for charitable and nonprofit 

organizations; and 

(b) A group of executive branch state employees that: 

(i) Has requested and received revocable approval from the 

agency's chief executive official, or such official's designee, to 

conduct one or more raffles in compliance with this section; 

(ii) Conducts a raffle solely to raise funds for either the 

state combined fund drive, created under RCW 41.04.033; an entity 

approved to receive funds from the state combined fund drive; or a 

charitable or benevolent entity, including but not limited to a 

person or family in need, as determined by a majority vote of the 

approved group of employees. No person or other entity may receive 

compensation in any form from the group for services rendered in 

support of this purpose; 

(iii) Promptly provides such information about the group's 

receipts, expenditures, and other activities as the agency's chief 

executive official or designee may periodically require, and 

otherwise complies with this section and RCW 9.46.0315; and 

(iv) Limits the participation in the raffle such that raffle 

tickets are sold only to, and winners are determined only from, the 

employees of the agency. 

(3) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0277, a bona fide nonprofit 

organization also includes a county, city, or town, provided that 

all revenue less prizes and expenses from raffles conducted by the 

county, city, or town must be used for community activities or 

tourism promotion activities. 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 4 Z-0919.1/20 

(4) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0321, a bona fide nonprofit 

organization also includes a nonprofit community center or a 

nonprofit senior housing organization provided that any activities 

are revenue neutral and consistent with rules adopted by the 

commission. 

Sec. 2.  RCW 9.46.0321 and 1987 c 4 s 28 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

Bona fide charitable or bona fide nonprofit organizations 

organized primarily for purposes other than the conduct of such 

activities are hereby authorized to conduct bingo, raffles, and 

amusement games, without obtaining a license to do so from the 

commission but only when: 

(1) Such activities are held in accordance with all other 

requirements of this chapter, other applicable laws, and rules of 

the commission; 

(2) Said activities are, alone or in any combination, conducted 

no more than ((twice)) twelve times each calendar year and over a 

period of no more than twelve consecutive days each time, 

notwithstanding the limitations of RCW 9.46.0205: PROVIDED, That a 

raffle conducted under this subsection may be conducted for a period 

longer than twelve days; 

(3) Only bona fide members of that organization, who are not 

paid for such services, participate in the management or operation 

of the activities; 

(4) Gross revenues to the organization from all the activities 

together do not exceed five thousand dollars during any calendar 

year; 

(5) All revenue therefrom, after deducting the cost of prizes 

and other expenses of the activity, is devoted solely to the 

purposes for which the organization qualifies as a bona fide 

charitable or nonprofit organization; 

(6) The organization gives notice at least five days in advance 

of the conduct of any of the activities to the local police agency 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 5 Z-0919.1/20

of the jurisdiction within which the activities are to be conducted 

of the organization's intent to conduct the activities, the location 

of the activities, and the date or dates they will be conducted; and 

(7) The organization conducting the activities maintains records

for a period of one year from the date of the event which accurately 

show at a minimum the gross revenue from each activity, details of 

the expenses of conducting the activities, and details of the uses 

to which the gross revenue therefrom is put. 

--- END --- 



AGENCY REQUEST LEGISLATION BILL DRAFT 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 

BILL REQUEST - CODE REVISER'S OFFICE 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
BILL REQ. #: Z-0919.1/20 
 
ATTY/TYPIST: JO:jlb 
 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Amending types of nonprofit organizations 
qualified to engage in certain bingo gambling activities, who may 
participate in the management or operation of a nonprofit raffle, 
and changes to the number of occurrences for unlicensed bingo 
activities. 
 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 1 Z-0919.1/20 

 

AN ACT Relating to amending types of nonprofit organizations 

qualified to engage in certain bingo gambling activities and changes 

to who may participate in the management or operation of a nonprofit 

raffle and the number of occurrences for unlicensed bingo 

activities; and amending RCW 9.46.0209 RCW 9.46.0227, and 9.46.0321. 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

Sec. 1.  RCW 9.46.0209 and 2020 c 150 s 1 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

(1)(a) "Bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization," as used 

in this chapter, means: 

(i) Any organization duly existing under the provisions of 

chapter 24.12, 24.20, or 24.28 RCW, any agricultural fair authorized 

under the provisions of chapter((s)) 15.76 or 36.37 RCW, or any 

nonprofit corporation duly existing under the provisions of chapter 

19.09 or 24.03 RCW for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, 

educational, civic, patriotic, political, religious, scientific, 

social, fraternal, athletic, or agricultural purposes only, or any 

nonprofit organization, whether incorporated or otherwise, when 

found by the commission to be organized and operating for one or 

more of the aforesaid purposes only, all of which in the opinion of 

the commission have been organized and are operated primarily for 

purposes other than the operation of gambling activities authorized 

under this chapter; or 

(ii) Any corporation which has been incorporated under Title 36 

U.S.C. and whose principal purposes are to furnish volunteer aid to 

members of the armed forces of the United States and also to carry 

on a system of national and international relief and to apply the 

same in mitigating the sufferings caused by pestilence, famine, 

fire, floods, and other national calamities and to devise and carry 

on measures for preventing the same. 

(b) An organization defined under (a) of this subsection must: 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 2 Z-0919.1/20 

(i) Have been organized and continuously operating for at least 

twelve calendar months immediately preceding making application for 

any license to operate a gambling activity, or the operation of any 

gambling activity authorized by this chapter for which no license is 

required; and 

(ii) Demonstrate to the commission that it has made significant 

progress toward the accomplishment of the purposes of the 

organization during the twelve consecutive month period preceding 

the date of application for a license or license renewal. The fact 

that contributions to an organization do not qualify for charitable 

contribution deduction purposes or that the organization is not 

otherwise exempt from payment of federal income taxes pursuant to 

the internal revenue code of 1954, as amended, shall constitute 

prima facie evidence that the organization is not a bona fide 

charitable or nonprofit organization for the purposes of this 

section. 

(c) Any person, association or organization which pays its 

employees, including members, compensation other than is reasonable 

therefor under the local prevailing wage scale shall be deemed 

paying compensation based in part or whole upon receipts relating to 

gambling activities authorized under this chapter and shall not be a 

bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization for the purposes of 

this chapter. 

(2) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0315 and 9.46.110, a bona fide 

nonprofit organization can be licensed by the commission and 

includes: 

(a) A credit union organized and operating under state or 

federal law. All revenue less prizes and expenses received from 

raffles conducted by credit unions must be devoted to purposes 

authorized under this section for charitable and nonprofit 

organizations; and 

(b) A group of executive branch state employees that: 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 3 Z-0919.1/20 

(i) Has requested and received revocable approval from the 

agency's chief executive official, or such official's designee, to 

conduct one or more raffles in compliance with this section; 

(ii) Conducts a raffle solely to raise funds for either the 

state combined fund drive, created under RCW 41.04.033; an entity 

approved to receive funds from the state combined fund drive; or a 

charitable or benevolent entity, including but not limited to a 

person or family in need, as determined by a majority vote of the 

approved group of employees. No person or other entity may receive 

compensation in any form from the group for services rendered in 

support of this purpose; 

(iii) Promptly provides such information about the group's 

receipts, expenditures, and other activities as the agency's chief 

executive official or designee may periodically require, and 

otherwise complies with this section and RCW 9.46.0315; and 

(iv) Limits the participation in the raffle such that raffle 

tickets are sold only to, and winners are determined only from, the 

employees of the agency. 

(3) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0277, a bona fide nonprofit 

organization also includes a county, city, or town, provided that 

all revenue less prizes and expenses from raffles conducted by the 

county, city, or town must be used for community activities or 

tourism promotion activities. 

(4) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0321, a bona fide nonprofit 

organization also includes a nonprofit community center or a 

nonprofit senior housing organization provided that any activities 

are revenue neutral and consistent with rules adopted by the 

commission. 

Sec. 2.  RCW 9.46.0321 and 1987 c 4 s 28 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

Bona fide charitable or bona fide nonprofit organizations 

organized primarily for purposes other than the conduct of such 

activities are hereby authorized to conduct bingo, raffles, and 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 4 Z-0919.1/20 

amusement games, without obtaining a license to do so from the 

commission but only when: 

(1) Such activities are held in accordance with all other 

requirements of this chapter, other applicable laws, and rules of 

the commission; 

(2) Said activities are, alone or in any combination, conducted 

no more than ((twice)) twelve times each calendar year and over a 

period of no more than twelve consecutive days each time, 

notwithstanding the limitations of RCW 9.46.0205: PROVIDED, That a 

raffle conducted under this subsection may be conducted for a period 

longer than twelve days; 

(3) Only bona fide members of that organization, who are not 

paid for such services, participate in the management or operation 

of the activities; 

(4) Gross revenues to the organization from all the activities 

together do not exceed five thousand dollars during any calendar 

year; 

(5) All revenue therefrom, after deducting the cost of prizes 

and other expenses of the activity, is devoted solely to the 

purposes for which the organization qualifies as a bona fide 

charitable or nonprofit organization; 

(6) The organization gives notice at least five days in advance 

of the conduct of any of the activities to the local police agency 

of the jurisdiction within which the activities are to be conducted 

of the organization's intent to conduct the activities, the location 

of the activities, and the date or dates they will be conducted; and 

(7) The organization conducting the activities maintains records 

for a period of one year from the date of the event which accurately 

show at a minimum the gross revenue from each activity, details of 

the expenses of conducting the activities, and details of the uses 

to which the gross revenue therefrom is put. 

 

 



Code Rev/JO:jlb 5 Z-0919.1/20 

Sec. 3. RCW 9.46.0277 and 2009 c 133 s 1 are each amended to 

read as follows:  
 

"Raffle," as used in this chapter, means a game in which 
tickets bearing an individual number are sold for not more than 
one hundred dollars each and in which a prize or prizes are 
awarded on the basis of a drawing from the tickets by the person 
or persons conducting the game, when the game is conducted by a 
bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization, no person other 
than a bona fide member of the organization takes any part in the 
management or operation of the game, unless otherwise provided 
for in rule by the commission, and no part of the proceeds thereof 
inure to the benefit of any person other than the organization 
conducting the game 

 
 

--- END --- 


	GAMBLING COMMISSION
	Agenda
	Tab 1 minutes
	Tab 1 lic rpt
	Tab 2 Online Gambling
	Tab 3 "defining scientific"
	Tab 4 Budget and Financial Update
	Tab 5 ARL



